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For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in
the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and the original Chinese
version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and

financial statements shall prevail.



Representation Letter

In connection with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises of TONS
LIGHTOLOGY INC. (the “Consolidated Financial Statements of the Affiliates™), we represent to you
that, the entities required to be included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Affiliates as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises” are the same as those required to be included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. and its subsidiaries (the “Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group™)
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 10. In addition, the information required
to be disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Affiliates is disclosed in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group. Consequently, TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. does not prepare a
separate set of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Affiliates. |

Very truly yours,
TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

By

TANG, SHIH-CHUAN, Chairman
February 26, 2020



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tons Lightology Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tons Lightology Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the “Group™) as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” and the International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted aunditing standards in the
Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor 5 Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants in the Republic of China (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion

thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements of the current period are stated as

follows:

Timing of recognising sales revenue.

Description

Please refer to Note 4(30) for a description of accounting policy on sales revenue. Please refer to Note
6(19) for details of sales revenue.

The Group is primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading lighting equipment and lamps and the
transaction mode is the parent company receives orders and transfers the orders to the subsidiaries for
manufacturing and delivery. Sales revenues are recognised when the control of goods are transferred
upon loading on board for shipping in accordance with the contract terms and the risk being transferred.
Considering that the revenue might not be recognised in the proper period as the timing of recognition
ﬁainly occurs when loading from subsidiaries and such sales revenue recognition process involves many
manual controls, we identified the timing of sales revenue recognistion as one of the key areas of focus

for this year’s audit.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A. Obtained an understanding and evaluated the operating procedures and internal controls over sales
revenue, and assessed the effectiveness on how the management controls the timing of recognising

sales revenue.
B. Performed sales cut-off test for a certain period before and after balance sheet date to assess the

accuracy of the timing of sales revenues.

Inventory valuation

Description

Please refer to Note 4(13) for a description of accounting policy on inventory valuation. Please refer to
Note 5(2) for accounting estimates and assumption uncertainty in relation to inventory valuation. Please
refer to Note 6(5) for a description of inventory. As of December 31, 2019, the Group’s inventory
amounted to NT$176,257 thousand and inventory valuation losses amounted to NT$ 13,192 thousand.
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The Group is primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading lighting equipment and lamps. Under the
Group’s inventory policy, inventory valuation is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
which involves subjective judgement resulting in a high degree of estimation uncertainty. Thus, we
identified inventory valuation as one of the key areas of focus for this year’s audit.

How our audit addressed the matter

‘We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A. Obtained an understanding of the Group’s inventory policy and assessed the reasonableness of the
policy.

B. Reviewed annual inventory counting plan and observed the annual inventory counting event in order
to assess the classification of obsolete inventory and effectiveness of obsolete inventory internal
control.

C. Obtained the Group’s inventory aging report and verified dates of movements with supporting
documents. Ensured the proper categorisation of inventory aging report in accordance with the
Group’s policy.

D. Obtained the net realisable value statement of each inventory, assessed whether the estimation policy
was consistently applied, tested the estimation basis of the net realisable value with relevant
information, including verifying the sales and purchase prices with supporting evidence, and
recalculated and evaluated the reasonableness of the inventory valuation.

Other matter — Parent company only financial reports
We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial statements
of Tons Lightology Inc. as at and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
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preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

A. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

B. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

C. Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

D. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
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based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

E. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

F. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicatior.



Liu, Mei-Lan Wang, Yu-Chuan
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
February 26, 2020

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not intended for
use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhonseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.



TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 309,160 23 3 366,898 25
1110 Financial assets at fair value through  6(2)

profit or loss - current 125,461 9 152,240 10
1136 Current financial assets at amortised  6(3) and 8

cost 66,193 5 49,917 3
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(4) 305 - 1,403 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(4) 148,801 1t 157,687 11
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties  6(4) and 7(2) 187 - - -
1200 Other receivables 4,961 - 1,9%4 -
130X Inventories 6(5) 163,065 12 170,022 12
1410 Prepayments 18,304 1 22,176 2
1470 Other current assets 3,949 - 3,850 -
11XX Current Assets 840,386 61 926,187 63

Non-current assets

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair ~ 6(7)

value through other comprehensive

income 128,3%4 9 133,342 9
1550 Investments accounted for using 6(6)

equity method 56,877 4 - -
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8) 299,446 22 324,120 22
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9) 32,589 3 - -
1780 Intangible assets 1,681 - 3,568 -
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(25) 4,437 - 5,227 1
1900 Other non-current assets 6(10) and 8 10,301 1 76,091 5
15XX Non-current assets 533,725 39 542,348 37
1XXX  Total assets $ 1,374,111 100 $ 1,468,535 100

{Continued)



TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2120 Financial liabilities at fair value 6(2)
through profit or loss - current $ 318 - 957 -
2150 Notes payable 45 - - -
2170 Accounts payable 79,446 6 97,148 7
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 72 10,159 1 17,158 1
2200 Other payables 6(11) 101,471 7 110,892 8
2230 Current income tax liabilities 7,662 20,433 1
2250 Provisions for labilities - current 6(14) 323 - 152 -
2280 Current lease liabilities 2,577 - - -
2300 Other current liabilities 6(19) 8,086 1 12,306 i
21XX Current Liabilities 210,087 15 259,046 18
Non-current liabilities
2550 Provisions for liabilities - noncurrent 6(14) 375 - 1,148 -
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(25) 9,421 1 2,488 -
2580 Nen-current lease liabilities 1,280 - - -
2600 Other non-current liabilities 10,766 1 11,953 1
25XX Non-current liabilities 21,842 2 15,588 1
2XXX Total Liabilities 231,629 17 274,635 19
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital 6(15)
3110 Common stock 401,253 29 399,628 27
3140 Advance receipts for share capital 303 - - -
Capital surplus 6(16)
3200 Capital surplus 510,666 37 505,825 34
Retained earnings 6(17)
3310 Legal reserve 85,219 6 74,663 )
3320 Special reserve 38,429 3 38,429 3
3350 Unappropriated retained eamnings 194,627 14 191,466 13
Other equity interest 6(18)
3400 QOther equity interest ( 54,323) ( 4y ( 16,111) ¢ I§]
3500 Treasury shares 6(15) ( 33,992) ( 2} - -
31XX Equity attributable to owners of
the parent 1,142,182 83 1,193,900 81
3XXX Total equity 1,142,182 83 1,193,900 81
Significant contingent liabilities and 9
unrecognised contract commitments
Significant events after the balance 11
sheet date
3X2X Total liabilities and equity $ 1,374,111 100 § 1,468,535 100

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amount)

Year ended December 31
2019 2018
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Sales revenue 6(19)and 7 $ 1,086,420 100 % 1,053,036 100
5000  Operating costs 6(5) and 7 ( 665,967) ( 61) ¢ 692.343) ¢ 66)
5900 Net operating margin 420,433 35 360,693 34
Operating expenses 6(23)(24)
6100 Selling expenses { 114,781) ( 11y ( 115,519) ( 11
6200 General and administrative expenses { 08,57 ( 9 ¢( 111,526) ( 10)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 42.,269) ( 41 ( 40,133) ( 4}
6000 Total operating expenses ( 255,624) ( 24) ( 267.178) ( 25}
6900  Operating profit 164,829 15 93,515 9
Non-operating income and expenses
7010 Other income 6(20) 18,247 2 16,886 2
7020 Other gains and losses 6(21) { 18,953) ( /3] 26,621 2
7050 Finance costs 6(22) ( 179) - - -
7060 Share of loss of associates and joint  6(6)
ventures accounted for using equity
method ( 13,123) ( 1) - -
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses ( 14,008) ¢ 1) 43,507 4
7900  Profit before income tax 150,821 14 137,022 13
7950 Income tax expense 6(25) { 45,133) ¢ 4) ( 31,465) ( 3)
§200  Profit for the year [] 105,688 10 $ 105,557 10
Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
8311 Other comprehensive income, before 6(12)
tax, actuarial gains (losses) on
defined benefit plans § 153 - (5 243) -
8316 Total expenses, by nature 6(18) ( 4,948) ( 1 5,766 -
8349 Income tax related to components of 6(25)
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss ' ( 280) - 1,135 -
8310 Components of other
comprehensive income that will
nof be reclassified to profit or
loss ( 5,075 ( 1) 6,658 -
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Financial statements translation 6(18)
differences of foreign operations ( 33,014) ( 3¢ 12,712) ( D
8360 Components of other
comprehensive income that will
be reclassified to profit or loss ( 33,014) ( KN 12,7123 ( I§]
8300  Total other comprehensive income
for the year (§ 38,089 ( 4)($ 6,054) ( 1)
8500  Total comprehensive income for the
year $ 67,599 6 3% 99,503 9
Basic earnings per share 6(26)
9750 Total basic earnings per share § 2,69 § 2.65
Diluted earnings per share 6(26)
9850 Total diluted earnings per share $ 2.65 § 2.61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Years ended December 31,

Notes 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 150,821 $ 137,022
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit {loss)
Depreciation 6(8)(23) 49,658 49,513
Depreciation - right-of-use assets 6(9)(23) 10,049 -
Amortization 6(23) 2,390 2,675
Expected credit (gain) loss 12(2) ( 891) 917
Net loss (gain) on financial assets and liabilities 6(21)
at fair vaiue through profit or loss 28,777  ( 16,900 )
Interest expense - lease liability 6(22) 179 -
Interest income 6(20) ( 7,027 ( 8,081 )
Dividend income ( 7,861 ) ( 5,714)
Wages and salaries - employee stock options 6(13) 2,322 1,883
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures 6{6)
accounted for under equity method 13,123 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and 6(21)
cquipment 786 271
(Reversal of) provision for warranty expense 6(14) ( 772) 540
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Notes receivable, net 1,005 422
Accounts receivable, net 9,365 ( 3,036)
Accounts receivable due from related parties { 1943 4
Other receivables ( 2,970) 1,389
Inventories 840 ( 17,354)
Prepayments 3,499 ¢ 1,690)
Other current assets ( 248y ( 335)
Changes in operating liabilities
Notes payable 45 59)
Accounts payable ( 14,724 ) ( 825)
Accounts payable to related parties ( 6,605 ) 5,365
Other payables ( 6,785) 3,834
Contract liabilities ( 4,145) 623
Other current liaiblities 181  ( 345 )
Other non-current liabilities ( 9149 0
Cash inflow generated from operations 219,994 149,309
Interest received 6,048 9,124
Dividend received 7,861 5,714
Interest paid ( 179) -
Income tax paid ( 50,264 ( 26,081)
Net cash flows from operating activities 184,360 138,066
(Continued)
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TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FL.OWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Years ended December 31,

Notes 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ($ 3,525) (§ 32,130)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - 48,495
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at amortised
cost ( 18,456 ) 18,722
Acquisition of investments accounted for using
equity method ( 70,000 ) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(28) ( 24,311) ( 42,323)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 458 12
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits 29,330 ( 28,020)
Acquisition of intangible assets { 503y ¢ 1,157)
Increase in other non-current assets ( 7,076 ) ( 9,322)
Net cash flows used in investing activities ( 94.083) ( 45,723)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in guarantee deposits received 6(29) ( 118) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities  6(9)(29) ( 2,379) -
Cash dividends paid 6(17) ( 92,094 ) ( 91,758)
Exercise of employee stock options 4,447 2,658
Repurchase of treasury stock 6(15) ({ 33,992) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities { 131,136) 89,100
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents { 16,879 ) ( 5,508 )
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents { 57,738 ( 2,265)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 366,898 369,163
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 309,160 $ 366,893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan doliars, except as otherwise indicated)
1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS
Tons Lightology Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated as a company limited by shares under the
provisions of the Company Law of the Republic of China (R.O.C) on August 20, 1992. On June 17, 2013,
the Company’s stocks were officially listed on the Taipei Exchange. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred herein as the “Group”) are primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading of

lighting equipment and lamps.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION
These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issuance by the Board of

Directors on February 26, 2020.
3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (_“IFRS” ) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission( “FSC” )

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2019 are as

- follows:
Effective date by

International

Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Prepayment features with negative compensation’ January 1, 2019
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ January 1, 2019
Amendments to [AS 19, ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’ January 1, 2019
Amendments to TAS 28, ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures’  January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ January 1, 2019
Anpual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the

Group’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’

A. IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and related interpretations and SICs. The standard
requires lessees to recognise a ‘right-of-use asset’ and a lease liability (except for those leases
with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets). The accounting stays the same
for lessors, which is to classify their leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account
for those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 only requires enhanced disclosures to be

provided by lessors.
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B. The Group has elected to apply IFRS 16 by not restating the comparative information (referred
herein as the ‘modified retrospective approach’) when applying “IFRSs” effective in 2019 as
endorsed by the FSC. Accordingly, the Group increased ‘right-of-use asset’ by $38,171 thousand,
increased ‘lease liability’ by $7,312 thousand and decreased other non-current assets and
prepayments by $30,517 thousand and $342 thousand, respectively, with respect to the lease
contracts of lessees on January 1, 2019,

C. The Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard at the date of
initial application of IFRS 16:

(a) Reassessment as to whether a contract is, or contains, a lease is not required, instead, the
application of IFRS 16 depends on whether or not the contracts were previously identified as
leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

(b) The use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

(c) The exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of ‘right-of-use asset’.

(d) The use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

D. The Group calculated the present value of lease liabilities by using weighted average incremental
borrowing interest rate range from 2.63% to 5.50%.

E. The Group recognised lease liabilities which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of IAS 17, ‘Leases’. These liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the -
date of initial application. The amount of aforementioned present values is the same as the amount
of lease liabilities recognised on January 1, 2019.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by

the Group
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2020 are as

follows:
Effective date by International
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Accounting Standards Board
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, ‘Disclosure Initiative-Definition of January 1, 2020
Material’
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Definition of a business’ January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, ‘Interest rate January 1, 2020
benchmark reform’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment. The quantitative impact will be disclosed
when the assessment is complete.

(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs as
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endorsed by the FSC are as follows:
Effective date by International

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Accounting Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution To be. dete ed by
. . . . . , International Accounting
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
Standards Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or January 1, 2021

noncurrent’
The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment. The quantitative impact will be disclosed
when the assessment is complete.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the

“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”, International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention:

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(c) Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are
all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
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affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation of subsidiaries begins
from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiaries.

(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
companies within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(¢) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

(¢) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture.
Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are reclassified to profit.or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets or
liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, all gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified
to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are disposed of.

. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Ownership (%)

Name of Name of Main business December December

investor subsidiary activities 31,2019 31,2018
TONS WORLD EXTEND Reinvestment 100 100
LIGHTOLOGY HOLDING INC. company
INC. (WORLD

EXTEND)

TONS HONG BO Reinvestment 100 100
LIGHTOLOGY INVESTMENT CO., company
INC. LTD. (HONG BO)
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Ownership (%)

Name of Name of Main business December December
investor subsidiary activities 31,2019 31,2018
WORLD EXTEND TONS LIGHTING  Sales of various 100 100

HOLDING INC.  CO.,LTD. (TL) lighting products
and accessories

WORLD EXTEND GREATSUPER Reinvestment 100 100
HOLDING INC. TECHNOLOGY company
LIMITED (GS)
WORLD EXTEND LUMINOUS Reinvestment 100 100
HOLDING INC. HOLDING company
INCORPORATED
(LUMINOUS)
GREATSUPER TITAN LIGHTING Design of products, 100 100
TECHNOLOGY  CO.,LTD manufacturing of
LIMITED (TITAN) hardware parts,
production and
trading of lighting

products and
accessories

GREATSUPER ZHONGSHAN Design of products, 100 100
TECHNOLOGY  TONS LIGHTING manufacturing of
LIMITED CO.,LTD hardware parts,
(ZHONGSHAN production and
TONS) trading of lighting
products and
accessories
LUMINOUS SHANGHAI TONS Sales of various 100 100
HOLDING LIGHTOLOGY lighting products
INCORPORATED CO.,LTD and accessories
(SHANGHAI
TONS)

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.
D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.
E. Significant restrictions: None.

F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group: None.

(4) Foreign currency translation
Ttems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
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currency””). The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars (NTD), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income., However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within ‘other gains and losses’.

B. Translation of foreign operations

The operating results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency

different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and

(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(5) Classification of current and non-current items
A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to
be exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet

date.

~20~



B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they

are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be paid off within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

(6) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that
meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments in
operations are classified as cash equivalents.

(7) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at

amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial liabilities at fair value. All related
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures these financial
liabilities at fair value with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

D. The Group recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established, future
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

(8) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities
which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.

The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:
The changes in fair value of equity investments that were recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to retained eamnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive
payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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(9) Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group’s time deposits which do not meet the definition of cash equivalents are those with a short
maturity period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is
immeaterial.
(10) Accounts and notes recejvable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange
for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(11) Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, for accounts receivable, the Group recognises the impairment provision for

12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition or recognises the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) if

such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking into consideration all reasonable

and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other hand, for accounts receivable that do

not contain a significant financing component, the Group recognises the impairment provision for

lifetime ECLs.

(12) Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from

the financial asset expire.
(13) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the

weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,

direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. The
item by item approach is used in applying the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable variable selling expenses.

(14) Investments accounted for using equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly or
indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.
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C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate, the Group recognises the Group’s share of change in equity of the associate in ‘capital
surplus’ in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

E. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Group does not subscribe or acquire new
shares proportionately, which results in a change in the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate but maintains significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and
‘investments accounted for under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for the increase or
decrease of its share of equity interest. If the above condition causes a decrease in the Group’s
ownership percentage of the associate, in addition to the above adjustment, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are reclassified
to profit or loss proportionately on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

E. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
associate, are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

(15) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the

construction period are capitalised.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are
depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives.
If each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
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lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Buildings and structures 20 ~ 21 years
Molding equipment 2 ~ 6 years
Machinery and equipment 2 ~ 20 years
Equipment for research and development 5 ~ 11 years
‘Transportation equipment 4 ~ 6 years
Other assets 2 ~ 20 years

(16) Leasing arrangements (lessee)-right-of-use assets/ lease liabilities
Effective 2019
A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at

which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are comprised of the following:

Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable.

The Group subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method
and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the
amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are
changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract
modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;

(c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.
The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the
lease term. When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is
recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

(17) Leased assets/ leases (lessee)

Prior to 2019
Payments made under an operating lease (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are

recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(18) Intangible assets
A. Patent is stated initially at its cost and amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated

economic service life of 10 years.

B. Computer software is stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 1 to 3 years.

C. Other intangible assets are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life of 3 years.

(19) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where there

is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which

the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher

of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or reasons for

recognizing impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment

loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the

depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been recognised.
(20) Notes and accounts payable

A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.

B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(21) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial liabilities are classified in this category of held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as financial
liabilities held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Financial liabilities that meet one
of the following criteria are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition:
(a) Hybrid (combined) contracts; or
(b)They eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or
(¢) They are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with

a documented risk management policy.

B. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial liabilities at fair value. All related
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures these
financial liabilities at fair value with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

(22) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(23) Non-hedging derivatives

Non-hedging derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is

entered into and recorded as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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They are subsequently remeasured at fair value and the gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss.
(24) Provisions
Provisions (including warranties) are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation on the balance sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
(25) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as
expense in that period when the employees render service.
B. Pensions
(a) Defined confribution plan
For the defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognised as pension expense when
they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.
(b) Defined benefit plan
i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount of
pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services in current period
or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit net obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount is
determined by using interest rates of government bonds (at the balance sheet date) that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability
ii. Remeasurements arising on the defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.
iii. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
C. Termination benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of
employment as a result from either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment
before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of redundancy
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benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Groﬁp recognises expense as it can
no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises relating restructuring costs,
whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12 months after balance sheet
date shall be discounted to their present value.
D. Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration
Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration are recognised as expense and liability,
provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and those amounts
can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the subsequently
actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates. If employee compensation is
paid by shares, the Group calculates the number of shares based on the fair value per share
estimated using a valuation technique specified in IFRS 2, ‘Share-based Payment’.
(26) Employee share-based payment
For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised as
compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The fair value
of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions and non-
market vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service
conditions that are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date. And
ultimately, the amount of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity
instruments that eventually vest.

(27) Income tax
A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or

loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in
the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
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loss. Deferred tax is provided on temi)orary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liability is seftled.

D. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each balance sheet
date, unrecognised and recognised deferred tax assets are reassessed.

(28) Share capital

A. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

B. Where the Company repurchases the Company’s equity share capital that has been issued, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, the difference between their book value and any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

(29) Dividends

Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities in the Company’s financial statements in the period in

which they are resolved by the Company’s Board of Directors. Stock dividends are recorded as

stock dividends to be distributed in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they
are resolved by the Company’s stockholders and are reclassified to ordinary shares on the effective

date of new shares issuance.

(30) Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

A. The Group manufactures and sells a range of lighting equipment and lamps. Sales ate recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full discretion over the channe] and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customers, and either the customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

B. Sales revenue of lighting equipment and lamps is often recognised based on the price specified
in the contract, net of the estimated sales discounts and allowances. Sales discounts and
allowances are calculated based on accumulated sales amount over 12 months. The Group
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calculates revenue based on the contracts, and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. The estimation is subject to an
assessment at each reporting date. As of reporting date, sales discounts and allowances payable
were recognised in short-term provisions. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales
are made with a credit term of 30 to 60 days after delivery, which is consistent with market
practice.

C. The Group’s obligation to provide standard warranty terms is recognised as a provision.

D. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment
is due. |

(31) Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

Chief Operating Decision-Maker. The Group’s Chief Operating Decision-Maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.
. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF
ASSUMPTION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

None.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Evaluation of inventories
As inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, the Group must determine the
net realisable value of inventories on balance sheet date using judgements and estimates. Due to the
rapid technology innovation, the Group evaluates the amounts of normal inventory consumption,
obsolete inventories or inventories without market selling value on balance sheet date, and writes
down the cost of inventories to the net realisable value. Such an evaluation of inventories is
principally based on the demand for the products within the specified period in the future. Therefore,
there might be material changes to the evaluation.
As of December 31, 2019, the carrying amount of inventories was $163,065 thousand.
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6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Cash on hand $ 816 § 686
Checking accounts and demand deposits 47,364 67,995
Time deposits 260,980 298,217

$ 309,160 $ 366,898

A. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse
credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

B. The Group’s time deposits that did not meet short-term cash commitments were classified as
‘financial assets at amortised cost’, please refer to Note 6 (3).

(2) Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - current

{tems December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss:

Listed stocks ‘ $ 129,394 § 126,770
Valuation adjustment ( 3,933) 25,470
$ 125,461 § 152,240

Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivative instruments - forward
foreign exchange contracts ¢ 318) (8 957)

A. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group recognises net losses on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to $29,403 thousand, $8,902 thousand,
respectively.

B. The Group entered into contracts relating to derivative financial assets (liabilities) which were not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The information is listed below:

December 31, 2019

Derivative financial assets Contract amount
(liabilities) (notional principal) Contract period

Forward foreign exchange contracts USD 1,800 thousand 2020.01.11~2020.12.15

December 31, 2018
Derivative financial assets Contract amount
(liabilities) (notional principal) Contract period
Forward foreign exchange contracts ~ USD 1,800 thousand 2019.1.25~2019.12.16

The Group entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to sell (sell USD and buy RMB) to
hedge exchange rate risk of import and export proceeds. However, these forward foreign exchange
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contracts ate not accounted for under hedge accounting. For the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, the Group recognised net gain (loss) of $626 thousand, and ($3,135) thousand,

respectively.

C. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others.

(3) Financial assets at amortised cost

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Time deposits $

66,193 § 49,917

A. The above mentioned are the time deposits that do not meet short-term cash commitments.
B. Details of the Group’s time deposits pledged to others as collateral are provided in Note 8.

(4) Notes and accounts receivable, net (including related parties)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Notes receivable $ 305 § 1,403
Less: Allowance for bad debts - -
$ 305 § 1,403
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Accounts receivable 8 148,926 § 158,708
Less: Allowance for bad debts ( 125) ( 1,021)
$ 148,801 § 157,687
" Accounts receivable due from related
parties $ 187 $ -
Less: Allowance for bad debts - -
$ 187 § -

A. The ageing analysis of notes and accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired is as

follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Notes Accounts Notes Accounts

receivable receivable receivable recelvable
Not past due $ 201 $§ 104,353 § 1,252 § 132,858
Up to 30 days 104 8,583 151 15,994
31 to 120 days - 41 - 8,678
- 11 - 157

over 120 days

$

305 § 148,988 § 1,403 § 157,687

The above ageing apalysis was based on past due date.

B. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, all
contracts with customers.

the Group’s accounts and notes receivable arose from

C. Information relating to credit risk of notes and accounts receivable is provided in Note 12(2).
D. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
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enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the Group’s notes and accounts receivable was the carrying amount of the notes and accounts
receivable.
E. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
(5) Inventories

December 31, 2019
Allowance for
Cost valuation loss Book value
Raw materials $ 92,588 (% 2,250) $ 90,338
Work in progress 20,989 ( 334) 20,655
Semi-finished goods 38,776 ( 1,789) 36,987
Finished goods 23,879 ( 8,819) 15,060
Inventory in transit 25 - 25
$ 176,257 (§ 13,192) $ 163,065
December 31, 2018
Allowance for
Cost valuation loss Book value
Raw materials and supplies $ 98,111 ($ 1,985) § 96,126
Work in progress 22,581 ( 491} 22,090
Semi-finished goods 34,877 ( 1,382) 33,495
Finished goods 24,487 ( 6,477y 18,010
Inventory in transit 301 - 301
$ 180,357 (8 10,335) § 170,022

The cost of inventories recognised as expense for the year:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Cost of goods sold $ 622,195 $ 692,209
Loss on (gain on reversal of) market price
decline and obsolescence 3123 ( 6,909)
Loss on scrapping inventory 4,119 9,585
Expenses related to inventory { 3,470) ( 2,542)
$ 625,967 § 692,343

The Group reversed from a previous inventory write-down because obsolete and slow-moving
inventories and inventories with decline in market value were partially sold or disposed by the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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(6) Investments accounted for using equity method

A. Associate:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Insignificant associate:
Art So Trading Limited $ 56,877 § -

(2) The basic information of the associates is as follows:

Principal
Company place of Shareholding ratio(%6) Nature of Methods of
name business December 31,2019 December 31, 2018 relationship measuremen
Art So Samoa 48.57% 0.00% Owns at least .
) Equity
Trading 20% of the method
Limited voting rights

(b)To meet the industrial investment requirement, the Board of Directors resolved to increase its
investment in Art So Trading Limited on July 27, 2018, The Company acquired 48.57% equity
interests in Art So Trading Limited on April 12, 2019, and goodwill of $589 thousand arising
from the acquisition of such investee was recognised as the cost of the investment in associate.

(c) Share of (loss)/profit of associates accounted for under equity method are as foltows:

Years ended December 31,
Investee 2019 2018
Art So Trading Limited - (8 13,123) § -

(7) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - non-current

Items December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Non-current items:
Equity instruments
Listed stocks $ 89,834 § 89,834
Unlisted stocks 11,393 11,393
Valuation adjustment 27,167 32,115
$ 128,394 § 133,342

A. The Group has elected to classify stock investments that are considered to be strategic investments
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value of such
investments amounted to $128,394 thousand and $133,342 thousand, respectively, as at

December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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B. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are listed below:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Fair value change recognised in other (3 5,198) $ 6,653
comprehensive income

C. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held by the Group was
$128,394 thousand and $133,342 thousand, respectively.

D. The Group did not pledge non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income to others as collateral.

E. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income is provided in Note 12(2).

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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(9) Leasing arrangements-lessee
Effective 2019
A. The Group leases various assets including land, buildings, machinery and equipment. Rental

contracts are typically made for periods of 1 to 47 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an

individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements

do not impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
B. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

At December 31, 2019 Year ended December 31, 2019

Carrying amount Depreciation charge
Land $ 28,551 § 859
Buildings 3,931 9,078
Machinery and equipment 107 112
$ 32,589 § 10,049

C. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the additions to right-of-use assets amounted

to $5,698 thousand and $0, respectively.
D. The information on income and expense accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2019

Items affecting profit or loss

Interest expense on lease
liabilities 3 179
E. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases amounted to
$9,558 thousand.
(10) Other non-current assets
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Land use right $ - 8 30,517
Guarantee deposits paid 2,763 32,121
Prep.a.y?nents for business 5.531 9,387
facilities
Other non-current assets 2,007 4,066
$ 10,301 $ 76,091

A. In November 2007, the Group entered into a land use right contract with Zhongshan
Administration for Industry & Commerce for use of the land in Xiaolan Town, Zhongshan
Prefecture, Guangdong Province in China, with a term of 47 years. Rents have been paid on the
contract date. The Group recognised rental expenses of $875 thousand for the year ended

December 31, 2018.
B. Information about the guarantee deposits paid that were pledged to others as collaterals is

provided in Note 8.
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(11) Other payables

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Salary and bonus payable $ 53,454 § 50,870
Payable for consumables and 13,841 13,763
purchases
Insurance and pension 11,179 14,836
expense payable
Housing fund payable 4,657 5,054
Others 18,340 26,369
$ 101,471 § 110,892
(12) Pensions

A (a) The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have a defined benefit pension plan in accordance
with the Labor Standards Act, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the
enforcement of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of
employees who chose to continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Act.
Under the defined benefit pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the
first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafier, subject to a maximum of 45
units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly
salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly
an amount equal to 2% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund
deposited with Bank of Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement
fund committee. Also, the Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor
pension reserve account by December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to
pay the pension calculated by the aforementioned method, to the employees expected to be
qualified for retirement next year, the Company will make contributions to cover the deficit
by next March.

(b) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Present value of defined $ 14,985 $ 14,823
benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets (3 5,342) ($ 4,116)
Net defined benefit liability $ 9,643 § 10,707
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(c) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit obligation
Year ended December 31,
2019
Balance at January 1 $ 14,823 ($ 4,116) $ 10,707
Interest cost 148 ( 42) 106
14971 ( 4.158) 10,813
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets - - -
(excluding amounts
included in interest
income or expense)
Change m financial 362 ) 362
assumptions
Experience adjustments ( 348) ( 167) ( 515)
14 ( 167) ( 153)
Pension fund contribution 1,017) ( 1,017)
Balance at December 31  § 14,985 ($ 5,342) $ 9,643

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit obligation
Year ended December 31,
2018
Balance at January 1 $ 14,278 ($ 3,905) § 10,373
Interest cost 196 ( 54) 142
14.474 ( 3.959) 10.515
Remeasurements: ~
Return on plan assets - - -
(excluding amounts
included in interest
income Or expense)
Change m financial 584 ) 584
assummptions
Experience adjustments ( 235} ( 105) ( 340)
349 ( 105) 244
Pension fund contribution - ( 52) ( 52)
Balance at December 31 § 14,823 (8§ 4.116) $ 10,707

(d) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s and domestic
subsidiaries’ defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment
and utilisation plan and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and
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Utilisation of the Labor Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilisation for the Fund
includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial institutions, investment in domestic or
foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private placement equity securities, investment in
domestic or foreign real estate securitisation products, etc.). With regard to the utilisation of’
the Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial statements
shall be no less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time
deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. If the earnings is less than
aforementioned rates, government shall make payment for the deficit after being authorised
by the Regulator. The Company has no right to participate in managing and operating that
fund and hence the Company is unable to disclose the classification of plan asset fair vaiue
in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142. The composition of fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 is given in the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilisation
Report announced by the government.
(&) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Discount rate 1.000% 1.375%
Future salary increases 3.00% 3.00%
Future mortality rate was estimated based on the 5th Taiwan Standard Ordinary Experience

Mortality Table.
Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit

obligation is affected. The analysis was as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increases
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%
December 31, 2019
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation $ 362 (8 372) (3 356) $ 348
December 31, 2013
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation $ 392 (8 404) ($ 388) $ 378

The sensitivity analysis above is based on other conditions that are unchanged but only one
assumption is changed. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once.

(f) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Group for the year ending
December 31, 2020 amounts to $72 thousand.

(g) As of December 31, 2019, the weighted average duration of that retirement plan is 8.78 years.
The analysis of timing of the future pension payment was as follows:

2-5 years $ 702
Over 5 years 5.260
S 5,962

B. (a) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution pension plan (the
“New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act™), covering all regular employees with
R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount based
on 6% of the employees® monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension
accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump
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sum upon termination of employment.

(b) The Company’s Hong Kong branch contributes 5% of employees’ salaries and wages (below
the ceiling of HKD1,500) pursuant to the mandatory provident fund schemes. The accrued
benefits is deposited in a specialised account in Manulife (International) Limited and can
only be withdrawn when scheme members reach the age of 65.

(c) Titan Lighting Co. Ltd. and Zhongshan Tons Lighting Co. Ltd. have a defined contribution
plan. Monthly contribution to an independent fund administered by the government in
accordance with the pension regulations in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) are based
on a certain percentage of employees’ monthly salaries and wages. On January 1, 2019 and
2018, abovementioned contribution percentage was both 13%. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligations.

(d) The pension costs under defined contribution pension plans of the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, were $16,652 thousand and $15,721 thousand, respectively.

(13) Share-based payment

A. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s share-based payment

arrangements were as follows:

Actual Actual Estimated
Quantity turnover turnover  future
Type of granted (in Contract Vesting rate in ratein  turnover
arrangement  Grant date thousands) period conditions 2019 2018 rate
Fourth employee 2014.11.13 600 5 years 2~4 years’ 0% 0% 0%
stock options service
Fifth employee 2016.12.23 600 5years 2-4 years' 2.63% 2.56% 0%
stock options service
Sixth emuployee 2018.11.02 600 Syears 2.4 vyears' 2:44% 0% 0%
stock options service
B. Details of the share-based payment arrangements are as follows:
(a) Fourth employee stock options
2019 2018
Weighted-average Weighted-average
No. of options exercise price  No. of options exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
Options outstanding
at January 1 116 § 20.50 243 § 21.70
Options exercised  ( 78) 20.50 ( 59) 21.70
Options exercised 38) 19.00 (Note) ( 68) 20.50
Options outstanding
at December 31 ; 19.00 (Note) 116 20.50 (Note)

Options exercisable
at December 31

- 116

Note: Price was adjusted due to the ex-dividend.
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(b) Fifth employee stock options

2019 2018
Weighted-average Weighted-average
No. of options exercise price ~ No. of options exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)
Options outstanding
at January 1 571§ 30.00 573 % 31.80
Options forfeited  ( 2) 27.80(Note) ( 2) 31.80
Options exercised  ( 76) 27.80(Note) - -
Options outstanding
at December 31 493 27.80Note) 571 30.00(Note)
Options exercisable
at December 31 351 289
Note: Price was adjusted due to the ex-dividend.
(c) Sixth employee stock options
2019 2018
Weighted-average Weighted-average

No. of options exercise price ~ No. of options exercise price
(in thousands) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)

Options outstanding

at January 1 600 $ 29.90 - 8§ -
Options forfeited  { 2) 27.80(Note) 600 29.90
Options outstanding '

at December 31 598 27.80(Note) ____ 600 29.90
Options exercisable

at December 31 — -

Note: Price was adjusted due to the ex-dividend.
C. The expiry date and exercise price of stock options outstanding at balance sheet date are as
follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
No. ofoptions  Exercise ~ No.ofoptions  Exercise
Expiry date  (in thousands) price (in thousands) price

Fourth employee 2019.11.12 - § 19.00 116 $ 20.50

stock options
Fifth employee 2021.12.22 493 27.80 571 30.00

stock options
Sixth employee 2023.11.01 598 27.80 600 29.90

stock options
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D. The fair value of stock options granted on grant date is measured using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Relevant information is as follows:

Expected
price Expected Fair
Type of Stock  Exercise volatility option Expected Risk-free wvalue per

arrangement  Grant date  price price {Note) life dividends interestrate  unit
Employee share 2014.11.13 28.20 2820  38.16% 5 years - 0.53% 9.36
options
Employee share 2016.12.23 3495 3495 17.40% 5 years - 0.94% 599
options |
Employee share 2018.11.02 2990 2990  28.28% 5 years - 0.75% 7.5
ontions

Note: price volatility rate was estimated by using the stock prices of the most recent period with
length of this period approximate to the length of the stock options® expected life, and the
standard deviation of return on the stock during this period.

E. Bxpenses incurred on share-based payment transactions are shown below:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Equity-settled - employee stock options $ 2,322 § 1,883
(14) Provisions
2019
Warranty provisions - current ~ Warranty provisions - non-current
At January 1 $ 152 8§ 1,148
Additional (reversal of} 171 ( 772)
provisions
Effects of foreign exchange - ( D
At December 31 $ 323 8§ 375
2018
Warranty provisions - current  Warranty provisions - non-current
At January 1 $ ‘ 535 % 625
(Rev.er'sal of) additional ( 383) 540
provisions
Effects of foreign exchange - ( 17)
At December 31 $ 152 § 1,148
Analysis of total provisions:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Current $ 323 8§ 152
Non-current 375 1,148
$ 698 § 1,300

The Group’s provision including provision for refund liabilities and provision for warranty on
lighting equipment and lamps sold. Provision for refund liabilities is estimated based on historical
refund data of lighting equipment and lamps and provision for warranty is estimated based on
historical warranty data of lighting equipment and lamps.
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(15) Share capital
A.As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s authorized capital was $500 million, consisting of

50,000 thousand shares of ordinary stock (including 5 million shares reserved for employee stock
options). The paid-in capital was $401,253 thousand with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share.
Advance receipts for ordinary shares amounting to $303 thousand (equivalent to 30 thousand
shares) arose from exercising employee stock options.The total share capital was $401,556
thousand.

B. The employees exercised options for 12 thousand shares and 116 thousand shares of common
stock during the period from November 6, 2019 to February 17, 2020, and the subscription price
was NT$19 and NT$27.8 per share, respectively. The share issuance became effective on March
4, 2020, as resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors on February 26, 2020. The registration
was not completed as of February 26, 2020.

C. The employees exercised options for 27 thousand shares and 58 thousand shares of common stock
during the period from June 24, 2019 to October 31, 2019, and the subscription price was NT$§19
and NT$27.8 per share, respectively. The share issuance became effective on November 6, 2019,
as resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors on November 1, 2019, The registration was
completed on November 26, 2019.

D. The employees exercised options for 78 thousand shares of common stock during the period from
January 1, 2019 to February 15, 2019, and the subscription price was NT$20.5 per share. The
share issuance became effective on March 6, 2019, as resolved at the meeting of Board of
Directors on February 26, 2019. The registration was completed on March 25, 2019.

E. The employees exercised options for 68 thousand shares of common stock during the period from
July 13, 2018 to December 18, 2018, and the subscription price was NT$20.5 per share. The share
issuance became effective on December 26, 2018, as resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors
on December 21, 2018. The registration was completed on January 11, 2019.

F. The employees exercised options for 83 thousand shares of common stock during the period from
November 13, 2017 to February 6, 2018, and the subscription price was NT$21.7 per share. The
share issuance became effective on March 6, 2018, as resolved at the meeting of Board of
Directors on February 23, 2018. The registration was completed on March 20, 2018.

Movements in the number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding are as follows:

(Unit: shares in thousands)

2019 2018 _
At January 1 39,963 39,836
Employee stock options exercised 193 127
Purchase of treasury share ( 1,000) -
At December 31 39,156 39,963




G. Treasury shares
(a) Reason for share reacquisition and movements in the number of the Company’s treasury
shares are as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2019

No. of shares No. of shares

at beginning Increase in ~ Decrease in at end of
Reason for reacquisition of the period the year the year the year
Reissued to employees - 1,000 - 1,000

(b) In order to encourage employees and strengthen coherence of the Company, the Board of
Directors during its meeting on February 26, 2019 adopted a resolution to purchase 1,000
thousand treasury shares at a price between $25 to $45 per share from February 27, 2019 to
April 26, 2019, which will be transferred to employees. As of December 31, 2019, the
Company has purchased 1,000 thousand treasury shares with the price amounting to $33,992
thousand.

(c) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, the number of shares bought back as
treasury share should not exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s issued and outstanding
shares and the amount bought back should not exceed the sum of retained earnings, paid-in
capital in excess of par value and realised capital surplus.

(d) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should not be pledged
as collateral and is not entitled to dividends before it is reissued.

(e) Pursuant to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act, treasury shares should be reissued to the
employees within three years from the reacquisition date and shares not reissued within the
three-year period are to be retired. Treasury shares to enhance the Company’s credit rating
and the stockholders’ equity should be retired within six months of acquisition.

(16) Capital surplus
Pursuant to the R.0.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par
value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the
Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law requires
that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the
paid-in capital each year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit urless the
legal reserve is insufficient.

(17) Retained earnings
A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall be

distributed in the following order:

(a) Offset prior years’ operating losses, if any.

(b) Set aside 10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve, and set aside or reverse special
reserve when necessary.

(¢) The remainder along with the unappropriated earnings of prior years is the accumulated
distributable earnings. The appropriation of accumulated distributable earnings shall be
proposed by the Board of Directors and be resolved by the shareholders.

The Company is at the development stage. In line with current and future development plans and

investment environment, and to respond to capital needs and domestic and foreign competition,

as well as shareholders® benefits, balanced dividends and the Company’s long-term financial plan,
etc., the earnings shall be appropriated in compliance with the above regulations. The ratio of
dividends to shareholders shall account for at least 50% of the accumulated distributable earnings,
of which the ratio of cash dividends shall account for at least 10% of the total dividends
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distributed. However, the Board of Directors shall adjust the ratios based on current operating
status and shall report to the shareholders for a resolution.

B. Under a resolution made by the Board of Directors, which has more than 2/3 directors attended
the meeting and more than 1/2 attended directors agreed, full or partial of the distributable
dividends and bonus, capital surplus or legal reserve will be distributed in the form of cash, and
it will be reported to the shareholders. The regulation in relation to approval from the
shareholders as above mentioned is not applicable.

C. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose.
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their
share ownership is permitted, provided that the distribution of the reserve is limited to the portion
in excess of 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital.

D. (a) In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When
debit balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be
included in the distributable earnings.

(b) The amount previously set aside by the Company as special reserve on initial application of
IFRSs in accordance with Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-
1010012865, dated April 6, 2012, shall be the same as the amount reclassified from
accumulated translation adjustment under sharcholders’ equity to retained earnings for the
exemptions elected by the Group. The increase in special reserve as a result of retained
earnings arising from the adoption of IFRS was $38,429 thousand.

E. (a) The appropriations of 2018 earnings as proposed by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2019
and the appropriations of 2017 earnings as resolved at the shareholders’ meeting on May 30,
2018 are detailed as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2018 2017
Dividends per Dividends per
share share
Amount (in dollars) Amount (in dollars)
Legal reserve $ 10,556 $ 12,108
Cash dividends 92.094 $§ 2.3 91,758 $ 2.3
$ 102,650 $ 103,866

(b) The details about the appropriation of 2019 earnings which was proposed at the Board of
Directors’ meeting on February 26, 2020 are as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2019

Amount Dividend per share (in dollar)
Legal reserve $ 10,581
Special reserve 15,894 § 2.15
Cash dividends 84,395
$ 110,870

Apart from the cash dividends which have been resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors on
February 26, 2020, the remaining items in the above appropriation of earnings are yet to be
resolved by the shareholders.
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F. For the information relating to employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration, please

refer to Note 6(24).
(18) Other equity items
2019 2018
Unrealised Unrealised

Cuwrrency  gains (losses) Currency  gains (losses)
translation  onvaluation  translation  on valuation
At January 1 G 48,777 § 32,666 ($  36,065) $ 26,013

Currency translation differences:

- Group ( 33,014) - ( 12,712) -
Revaluation - ( 4,948) - 5,766
Revaluation - tax - ( 250) - 887
At December 31 ($ 81,791) § 27468 $§ 48,777 $ 32,666

(19) Operating revenue
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Sales revenue $ 1,086,420 § 1,053,036

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
Please refer to Note 14 for details of segment information.
B. Contract liabilities (shown as ‘other current liabilities’)
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities $ 7,286 § 11,499
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract Hability balance at the beginning of the

ear:
¢ Years ended December 31,
2019 2018

Revenue recognised that was included in the

contract liability balance at the beginning of the year $ 10234 $ 10,714

(20) Other income
Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Interest income:

Interest income from bank deposits $ 7,027 $ 8,981
Dividend income 7,861 5,714
Other income - others : 3,359 2,191

$ 18,247 § 16,886
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(21) Other gains and losses
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ (§ 786) ($ 271)
equipment
Net currency exchange gain 10,696 10,084
Net (loss) gain on financial assets ( 28,777) 16,900

(liabilities) at fair value through

profit or loss
Other losses ( 86) ( 92)

$ 18,953) $ 26,621

(22) Finance costs
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Interest expense $ 179 8§ -

Note; Interest expense arose from the lease liabilities discounted over the contract period upon the
adoption of IFRS 16 starting from January 1, 2019.

(23) Expenses by nature

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Employee benefit expense $ 279,674 §$ . 266,814
Depreciation charges on property, 49,658 - 49,513
plant and equipment
Depreciation charges on right-of-use assets 10,049 -
Amortisation charges 2,390 2,675

(24) Employee benefit expense
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Wages and salaries $ 242,979 § 227,970
Labour and health insurance fees 3,944 8,003
Pension costs 16,758 15,863
Directors’ remunerations 4,017 3,954
Other employee benefit expense 11.976 11,024
$ 279,674 $ 266,814

Note: For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group had 684 and 712 employees,
respectively, and had 5 non-employee directors for both periods.

A. In accordance with the amended Articles of Incorporation as resolved by the shareholders’
meeting on May 30, 2018, the current year’s earnings, if profit, the Company shall appropriate
5% to 15% as the employees’ compensation; if loss, shall first reserve the offset amount, The
ratio before amendment was 8% to 12% for employees’ compensation and shall not be higher
than 2% for directors’ remuneration.
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B. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the accrued employees’ compensation and
directors’ remuneration is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Employees’ compensation $ 11,219 § 10,902
Directors’ remuneration 1,683 1.635
$ 12,902 § 12,537

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the aforementioned amounts were recognised
in salary expenses, and accrued based on 8% and 1.2%, respectively, of the pretax income that
has not been accrued for the above expenses of the current period.
Employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration for 2019 and 2018 as resolved by the
Board of Directors were in agreement with those amounts recognised in the 2019 and 2018
financial statements. The employees’ compensation will be distributed in the form of cash.
Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration of the Company as
resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post
System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
(25) Income tax
A. Income tax expense
(a) Components of income tax expense:
Years ended December 31,

Current tax: 2019 2018
Current tax on profit for the year $ 38,233 % 38,231
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 146 1,783
Prior year income tax overestimation ( 689) ( 923)
Total current tax 37,690 39,091
Deferred tax:
Effect of taxation law amendments - ( 388)
Origination and reversal of tempora
dif%élrlences poTEy 7,443 ( 7,238)
Income tax expense $ 45,133 § 31,465
(b) The income tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as
follows:
Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations $ 30 (8 49)
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income 250 ( 946)
Impact of change in tax rate - 140)
$ 280 (3 1,135)
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B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Tax calculated based on profit
before tax and statutory tax rate $ 44,596 $ 40,574
Expenses disallowed by tax
regulation 1,671 ( 6,747)
Tax exempt income by tax
regulation ( 591) ( 6,002)
Prior year income tax
overestimation ( 689) ( 923)
Effect from Alternative Minimum Tax - 3,168
Effect from changes in tax regulation - ( 388)
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 146 1,783
Income tax expense $ 45,133 § 31,465

(Remainder of page intentionally left bank)
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C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:
2019

Recognised in  Recognised in other
January 1 profit or loss comprehensive income December 31

Temporary differences:

-Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for inventory
valuation and

obsolescence losses $ 1,488 § 214§ - 8 1,702
Unrealised sales returns

and discounts 31 35 - 66
Warranty liabilities 68 1 - 69
Unallocated amount of ‘

accrued pension 764 ( 183) - 581
Remeasurement of

defined benefit 1,377 - 30) 1,347
Unrealised foreign

exchange losses (gains) 639 ( 639) - -
Unrealised loss on

financial assets at fair 552 - ( 250) 302
value through other :

comprehensive income
Unused compensated

absences 308 62 - 370
$ 5,227 ($ 510} (8 280) § 4,437
-Deferred tax liabilities:
Amount of allowance
for bad debts that
exceed the limit for tax
purpose $ -3 167) $ - (% 167)
Gains on foreign long-
term investments ( 2,488) ( 5,763) - 8,251)
Unrealised foreign
exchange losses (gains) - (1,003 - 1,003)
(S 2,488) (3 6,933) § - ($ 9,421)
$ 2,739 (8 7,443) (§ 280) ($ 4,984)
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2018

Recognised in  Recognised in other
January 1 profit or Joss comprehensive income December 31

Temporary differences:

-Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for inventory

valuation and

obsolescence losses $ 1,209 § 279 § - 8 1,488
Unrealised sales returns

and discounts 57 ( 26) - 31
Warranty liabilities 94 ( 26) - 68
Unallocated amount of '

accrued pension expense 634 130 - 764
Unrealised foreign

exchange losses 179 460 - 639
Remeasurement of defined

benefit obligations 1,129 - 248 1,377
Unrealised loss on

financial assets at fair - - 552 552
value through other

comprehensive income
Unused compensated

absences 208 100 - 308
$ 3,510 § 917 § 800 $ 5,227

-Deferred tax liabilities:

Amount of allowance for

bad debts that exceed the

limit for tax purpose (% 182) § 182 § - 8 -

{Gains) losses on foreign

long-term investments ( 9,015) 6,527 - ( 2,488)

Unrealised gain on
financial assets at fair

value through other ( 335) - 335 & -
& 9,532) $ 6,709 § 335 (8 2,488)
(8 6,022) $ 7,626 § 1,135 § 2,739

D. The Company has not recognised taxable temporary differences associated with investment in
subsidiaries as deferred tax liabilities. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of
temporary difference unrecognised as deferred tax liabilities were $64,310 and $47,279
thousand, respectively.

E. The Company’s income tax returns through 2017 have been assessed and approved by the Tax

Authority.

F. Under the amendments to the Income Tax Act which was promulgated by the President of the
Republic of China on February 7, 2018, the Company’s applicable income tax rate was raised
from 17% to 20% effective from January 1, 2018. The Group has assessed the impact of the

change in income tax rate.
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(26) Earnings per share
Earnings per share of ordinary shares:

Year ended December 31, 2019

Weighted average
number of ordinary
Amount after shares outstanding Earnings per
tax (shares in thousands) _share (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary $ 105.688 39311 § 2 69

shareholders of the parent
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent
Assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares
- Employees’ compensation - _ 350
- Employee stock options - 227
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares 3 105,688 39,888 § 2.65

105,688 39,311

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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Year ended December 31, 2018

Weighted average
number of ordinary
Amount after shares outstanding Earnings per
tax (shares in thousands) _share (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent $ 105,557 39,897 § 2.65

Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the parent 105,557 39,897
Assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares
- Employees’ compensation - : 352
- Employee stock options - 143

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares $ 105,557 40,392 § 2.61

(27) Operating leases

Prior to 2019

The Group leases real estate under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are
between 2 and 3 years, and all these lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period.
Rental is increased every year to reflect market rental rates. Partial leases are charged extra rents
following the changes of local price indexes. The Group recognised rental expenses of $17,878
thousand for these leases in profit or loss for the year ended December 31, 2018. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

December 31, 2018
Not later than one year $ 7,736
Later than one year but
not later than five years -
$ 7,736

(28) Supplemental cash flow information
Investing activities with partial cash payments:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Purchase of property, plant and equipment $ 25,265 $ 42,661
Add: Ope.nmg balance of payable on 834 496
equipment
Less: End.mg balance of payable on ( 1,788) ( 834)
equipment :
Cash paid during the year $ 24,311 § 42323
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(29) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

Guarantee Liabilities from
deposits Lease Dividends financing activities
received liabilities payable - gross

At January 1, 2019 $ 1,246 § - $ - 3 1,246
Effect of first-time

adoption of IFRS - 7,312 - 7,312
Changes in cash flow

from financing activities ( 118) ( 9,379) ( 92,004) ( 101,591)
Impact of changes

in foreign exchange rate ( 2) ( 116) - ( 118)
Changes in other non-cash

items - 6,040 92,094 08,134
At December 31, 2019 $ 1,126 $ 3,857 § - 3 4,983

Guarantee Liabilities from
deposits Lease Dividends financing activities -
received liabilities payable gross

At January 1, 2018 $ 1,246 8§ - % -5 1,246
Changes in cash flow from _

financing activities - - ( 91,758) ( 91,758)
Changes in other non-cash

items - - 91,758 91,758
At December 31, 2018 $ 1,246  § - § - 3 1,246

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names of related parties and relationship

Names of related parties Relationship with the Group
WeiSen Electronic Co., Ltd Other related party
ARTSO INTERNATIONAL, INC. Associate
BEIIING ARTSO FURNITURE CO.,LTD Associate
Shanghai Art So Zhong Trading Limited Associate

(2) Significant related party transactions

A. Operating revenue
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Sales of goods:
- Other related parties $ 65 $ 30
-Associates 1,327 -
$ 1,392 $ 30

Goods were sold based on the price lists in force and terms that would be available to third parties.
The credit terms were 60 days for related parties and 30~90 days for third parties.
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B. Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Accounts receivable:
- BEITING ARTSO FURNITURE

CO.,LTD $ 90 $ -
- Shanghai Art So Zhong Trading

Limited 97 -

$ 187 § -
C. Purchases

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018

Purchases of raw materials:

- Other related parties $ 31,277 § 43,254
The purchases from related parties mostly were for starters, ballasts and transformers, which were
based on the terms that would be available to third parties. The payment terms were 90 days after
monthly billing for related parties and 30~90 days after monthly billing for third parties.

D. Accounts payable

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Accounts payable:
- WeiSen Electronic Co., Ltd. $ 10,159 § 17,158

(3) Key management compensation

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Short-term employee benefits $ 32,857 $ 31,689
Post-employment benefits 565 599
Share-based payments 1.216 1.019

$ 34,638 $ 33,307

8. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Group’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:
Book value
Pledged asset December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 Purpose

Time deposits
(shown as ‘financial assets at 5 4305 $§ 4,472 Forward foreign exchange

amortised cost’)
Security and investment

Guarantee deposits paid
32,121 commitment deposits

(shown as ‘other non-current assets’) 2,763
8 7.068 3 36,593
9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNISED CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS

(1) Contingencies
None.
(2) Commitments
Details of operating leases are provided in Note 6(27).
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10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.
11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

In order to encourage employees and strengthen coherence of the Company, the Board of Directors
during its meeting on February 26, 2020 adopted a resolution to purchase 1,000 thousand treasury shares
at a price between NT$25 to NT$35 per share for the period from February 27, 2020 to April 26, 2020,

which will be transferred to the employees.
12. OTHERS

(1) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders and issue new shares to reduce debt. The
Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-asset ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2018,
was to maintain the debt-to-asset ratio within 20% to 40%. The debt-to-asset ratios at December 31,

2019 and 2018, were as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Total liabilities $ 231,929 § 274,635
Total assets 3 1,374,111 § 1,468,535
Gearing ratio 17% 19%

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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(2) Financial instruments
A, Financial instruments by category

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets mandatorily measured $ 125,461 § 152,240
at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through 128,394 133,342
other comprehensive income
Cash and cash equivalents 309,160 366,898
Financial assets at amortised cost 66,193 49,917
Notes receivable 305 1,403
Accounts receivable (including _ 148,988 157,687
related parties)
Other receivabies 4,961 1,994
Guarantee deposits paid 2,763 32,121
$ 786,225 § 895,602

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Financial liabilities
Financial labilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities held for trading $ 318 § 957
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Notes payable 45 -
Accounts payable (including 89,605 114,306
related parties)

Other accounts payable 101,471 110,892
Guarantee deposits received 1,126 1,246
$ 192,565 § 227,401

Lease liability (including
current portion) $ 3857 $ -

B. Financial risk management policies

(a) The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. To minimise any
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group, derivative financial instruments,
such as foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge certain exchange rate risk.
Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative
instruments. 4

(b) Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group treasury) under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close cooperation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
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areas and matters, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.
(c) Information about derivative financial instruments that are used to hedge certain exchange rate
risk are provided in Note 6(2).
C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks
(a) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk
i. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the

transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries used in various functional currency,
primatily with respect to the USD and RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.

ii. The group companies are required to hedge their entire foreign exchange risk exposure with
the Group treasury. Exchange rate risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable
USD and RMB income and expenditures, Entities in the Group use natural hedge to decrease
the risk exposure in the foreign currency, transacted with Group treasury.

iii. The Group hedges foreign exchange rate by using forward exchange contracts. However, the
Group does not adopt hedging accounting. Details of financial assets or liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are provided in Note 6(2).

iv. The Group’s risk management policy is to hedge anticipated cash flows (mainly from export
sales and purchase of inventory) in each major foreign currency.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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vi. Total exchange gain, including realised and unrealised arising from significant foreign

exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $10,696 thousand and $10,084 thousand,
respectively.

Price risk

i

The Group’s equity securities, which are exposed to price risk, are the held financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

ji. The Group mainly invests in shares issued by the domestic companies. The prices of equity

securities would change due to the change of the future value of investee companies. If the
prices of these equity securities had increased/decreased by 1% with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 would have
increased/decreased by $1,255 thousand and $1,522 thousand, respectively, as a result of
gains/losses on equity securities classified as at fajr value through profit or loss. Other
components of equity would have increased/decreased by $1,284 thousand and $1,333
thousand, respectively, as a result of other comprehensive income classified as equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group has no items with impact on

profit (loss) due to changes in interest rates.
(b) Credit risk
i. Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from default by the clients

ii.

iil.

or counterparties of financial instruments on the contract obligations. The main factor is
that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts receivable based on the agreed terms.
For banks and financial institutions, the Group transacts with a variety of banks and
financial institutions, mainly domestic and overseas well-known financial institutions, to
avoid concentration in any single counterparty and to minimise credit risk. The Group can
only enter into the financial services and loan agreement provided by banks and financial
institutions after being approved by the Board of Directors or authorised management
according to the Group’s delegation of authorisation policy. According to the Group’s credit
policy, each local entity in the Group is responsible for managing and analysing the credit
risk for each of their new clients before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions
are offered. Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into
account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board of
Directors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

The Group adopts the assumptions under IFRS 9, the default occurs when the contract
payments are past due over 1 year.
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iv. The Group adopts following assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition: If the contract
payments were past due over 30 days based on the terms, there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition.

v.The following indicators are used to determine whether the credit impairment of debt

instruments has occurred:

(i) It becomes probable that the issuer will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization due to their financial difficulties;

(ii) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties;

(1ii) Default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

(iv) Adverse changes in national or regional economic conditions that are expected to cause
a default.

vi. The Group applies the simplified approach using loss rate methodology to estimate

expected credit loss under the provision matrix basis.

vii. The Group used the forecastability to adjust historical and timely information to assess

the default possibility of accounts receivable. On December 31, 2019 and 2018, the loss
rate methodology is as follows:

Individual Group Total
December 31, 2019
Expected loss rate - 0.08%
Total book value 3 - § 149,113 § 149,113
Loss allowance ¥ - § 125 $ 125
Individual Group Total
December 31, 2018
Expected loss rate - 0.64%
Total book value b - $ 158,708 $ 158,708

Loss allowance 3 - % 1,021 § 1,021

viii, Movements in relation to the group applying the simplified approach to provide loss

allowance for accounts receivable is as follows:
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2019
Accounts receivable

At January 1 $ 1,021
Transferred to revenue ( 891)
Effect of exchange rate changes ( 5)
At December 31 $ 125
2018
Accounts receivable
At January 1 $ 111
Provision for impairment 917
Effect of exchange rate changes ( 7}
At December 31 3 1,021

(c) Liquidity risk
i. Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregated

ii.

by Group treasury. Group treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such forecasting
takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory
or legal requirements.

The Group invests surplus cash in interest bearing current accounts and money market
deposits, choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide
sufficient head-room as determined by the above-mentioned forecasts.

iti. The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial labilities and net-settled or

gross-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date for non-
derivative financial liabilities and to the expected maturity date for derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Less Between Between  Between
than 1and2 2and 3 3and 5 Over 5
December 31, 2019 1 year years years years years
Notes and accounts payable $§ 79,491 § - 8 - $ - 3 -
Accounts payable -
related parties 10,159 ) i ) )
Other payables 101,471 - - - -
Lease liabilities 2,670 1,290 - - -
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Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Less Between Between  Between
than 1 and 2 2and 3 Jand 5 Qver 5
December 31, 2018 1 year years years years years
Accounts payable $ 97,148 § -3 - $ - § -
Accounts payable - 17,158 - - - -
related parties
Other payables 110,892 - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities:
Less Between Between Between
than 1 and 2 2 and 3 3and 5 Over 5
December 31, 2019 1 year years years years years
Forward exchange $ 318 § - $ - 3 -3 -
contracts
Derivative financial liabilities:
' Less Between  Between  Between
than 1and 2 2and 3 3and 5 Over 5
December 31, 2018 1 year years years years years
Forward exchange $ 957 § - 3 - 5 - 8 -

contracts

(3) Fair value information ‘
A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. A market is regarded as active where a
market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or Hability.

B. Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments not measured at fair value (including
cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable, accounts receivable - related
parties, other receivables, notes payable, accounts payable, accounts payable - related parties and

other payables) are approximate to their fair values.
C. The related information of financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by
level on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liabilities is as follows:
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(2) The related information of natures of the assets and liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss $ 125,461 § - 8§ - $ 125,461
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income -

equity securities $ 118,505 § - $ 9,889 § 128,394
Liabilities
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss

$ 318 § - 8 318

oo
1

December 31, 2018 Level 1 . Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ 152,240 § - § - § 152,240

Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income -

equity securities $ 124,705
Liabilities

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss $ - 3 957 § - 3 957
(b) The Group used market quoted prices as the fair values of the instruments in Level 1. Based
on the characteristics, the closing prices are used for emerging shares.
(c) Forward exchange contracts are usually valued based on the current forward exchange rate.
D. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2.
E. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no transfer into or out from Level 3.
F. Experts and the Gfoup’s treasury department are in charge of valuation procedures for fair value
measurements being categorised within Level 3, which is to verify independent fair value of
financial instruments. Such assessment is to ensure the valuation results are reasonable by applying
independent information to make results close to current market conditions, confirming the
resource of information is independent, reliable and in line with other resources and represented
as the exercisable price, and frequently calibrating valuation model, performing back-testing,
updating inputs used to the valuation model and making any other necessary adjustments to the

$ - $§ 8637 § 133,342

fair value.
G. The following is the qualitative information of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity
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analysis of changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation model used in Level 3 fair

value measurement:
Fair value at Significant Relationship
December 31, Valuation unobservable of inputs to
2019 technique input Range fair value
Non-derivative

equity instruments:

Unlisted shares  $ 9,889 Market Net equity 0.69 The higher the
comparable ratio and price multiple, the
companies  to earnings higher the fair

ratio value
Fair value at Significant Relationship
December 31, Valuation unobservable of inputs to
2018 technique input Range fair value
Non-derivative

equity instruments:

Unlisted shares  $ 8,637 Market Net equity 0.59 The higher the
comparable ratio and price multiple, the
companies to earnings higher the fair

ratio value

H. The Group has carefully assessed the valuation models and assumptions used to measure fair
value; therefore, the fair value measurement is reasonable. However, use of different valuation
models or assumptions may result in difference measurement. The following is the effect of profit
or loss or of other comprehensive income from financial assets and liabilities categorised within
Level 3 if the inputs used to valuation models have changed:

December 31, 2019
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Input Change Favourable change Unfavourable change

Financial assets
. . . 4 50
Equity Ny Ne.:t equity ra'tlo and. 5% g 510 ($ 510)
securities  price to earnimngs ratio
December 31, 2018

Recognised in other comprehensive income
Input Change Favourable change Unfavourable change

Financial assets
Equity Net equity ratio and +=5% § 425 (8 425)
securities  price to earnings ratio

(4) Retrospective restatement
Under IFRS 9, the time deposits, that do not meet short-term cash commitments, are recognised as

‘financial assets at amortised cost’, but were previously presented as ‘other current assets’.
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Movements are as follows:

Before
Consolidated balance sheet affected items restatement Adjustments  After restatement
December 31, 2018
Financial assets at amortised cost $ - % 49917 § 49,917
Other current assets 53,767 ( 49,917) 3,850
Other assets _ 1,414,768 - 1,414,768
Total affected assets $ 1,468,535 $ - $ 1,468,535
Total affected liabilities $ 274,635 § - $ 274,635
Total affected equity $ 1,193,900 $ - 8 1,193,900
Total affected liabilitics and equity $ 1,468,535 § - 3 1,468,535

13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(1) Significant transactions information
A. Loans to others: Please refer to table 1.

B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Please refer to table 1. _

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): Please refer to table 2.

D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding NT$300 million or
20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

E. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

F. Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-

in capital or more: Please refer to table 3.
H. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more:
Please refer to table 4.

I. Trading in derivative financial instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: Titan Lighting
Co., Ltd. entered into forward foreign exchange contracts for the year ended December 31, 2019.
As of December 31, 2019, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of $318 thousand
was recognised.

1. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Please refer to table 5.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainiand

China): Please refer to table 6.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Please refer to table 7.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies

in the Mainland Area:
Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies
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in the Mainland Area for the year ended December 31, 2019 are provided in Note 13(1) J.
14. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(1) General information

Management has determined the reportable operating segments based on the reports reviewed by
the Chief Operating Decision-Maker that are used to make strategic decisions. Business organisation
is divided into Tons Lightology Inc., Titan Lighting Co., Ltd. and Zhongshan Tons Lighting Co.,
Ltd. based on the nature. The Group’s revenue is mainly from manufacturing and trading of lighting
equipment and lamps.

(2) Measurement of segment information
The operating gains and losses are measured by the amount before tax and used as basis for

performance appraisal. This measurement excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditures from
the operating segments, equity-settled share-based payments and unrealised gains (losses) from
financial assets.

(3) Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
A. The segment information provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker for the reportable

segments is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2019

ZHONGSHAN
TONS TITAN TONS
LIGHTING LIGHTING
LIGHTOLOGY co., co.,
INC. LTD. LTD. Total
Revenue from
external customers $ 928,714 $ 4119 $§ 121,440 §$§ 1,054,273
Inter-segment revenue 26,245 748,152 39,533 813,930
Segment revenue $ 054,959 § 752271 § 160,973 § 1,868,203
Segment profit
before tax $ 67,444 $ 73,627 § 23,140 $ 164,211
Segment income (loss)
including:
Depreciation and
amortisation $ 12,525 § 41,385 §$ 4,973 § 58,883
Income tax expense 21,643 15,999 6,878 44,520
Investment income
adopting equity
method 59,887 - - 59,887
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Year ended December 31, 2018

ZHONGSHAN
TONS TITAN TONS
LIGHTING LIGHTING
LIGHTOLOGY co.. o..
INC. LTD. LTD. Total

Revenue from

external customers 5 929,740 §$ 3,713  § 116,500 $ 1,049,953
Inter - segment revenue 26,260 753,757 23,877 803,894
Segment revenue $ 056,000 $ 757,470 % 140,377 $ 1,853,847
Segment profit

before tax $ 70,515 §$ 33,969 § 10,764 $ 115,248
Segment income (loss)
including:
Depreciation and

amortisation $ 6,021 § 40,427 $ 1,803 § 48,251
Income tax expense 18,178 9,087 455 27,720
Investment income

adopting equity

method 53,220 - - 53,220

B. The Group’s reportable operating segments are the result of the organisation divided by operating

business.

C. The Group’s revenue is mainly from manufacturing and trading of lighting equipment and lamps.
D. The Group did not allocate income tax expense to reportable segments. The reportable amounts
are in agreement with the amount stated in the report to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker.

E. The accounting policies of the operating segments are in agreement with the significant
accounting policies summarized in Note 4. The Group’s segment profit (loss) is measured with
the operating profit (loss) before tax, which is used as a basis for the Group in assessing the
performance of the operating segments.

(4) Reconciliation for segment income (loss)

A. A reconciliation of total revenue after adjustment to the total revenue from continuing operating

during the period is provided as follows:
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Years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Reportable operating segments revenue  $ 1,868,203 $ 1,853,847

after adjustment
Other operating segments revenue

after adjustment 793,263 763,787
Total operating segments revenue 2,661,466 2,617,634
Elimination of intersegment revenue ( 1,575,046) ( 1,564,598)
Total consolidated operating revenue $ 1,086,420 $ 1,053,036

B. A reconciliation of income or loss before tax after adjustment to the income before tax from
continuing operating during the period is provided as follows:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Reportable operating segments income $ 164,211 § 115,248

before tax after adjustment
Other operating segments (loss) income

before tax after adjustment ( 14,046) 21,669
Total operating segments revenue 150,165 136,917
Elimination of intersegment revenue 656 105
Income before tax from

continuing operations $ 150,821 § 137,022

(5) Information on products and services
Revenues from external customers are mainly from manufacturing and sales of lighting equipment

and lamps. Details of revenue are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018

Sales reverue $ 1,086,420 $ 1,053,036

(6) Geographical information
Revenues were calculated based on the location of customers. Non-current assets, including property,

plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets, were categorised based on the
location of the assets.
The geographical information is as follows:
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Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Revenue Non-current assets Revenue Non-current assets
Europe $ 715,519 § - 8 705,639 § -
Asia 301,257 333,716 266,591 327,688
America 2,319 - 4,450 -
Others 67,325 - 76,356 -
$ 1,086,420 $ 333,716 § 1,053,036 § 327,688
(7) Major customer information
The major customer information is as follows:
Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Revenue Segment Revenue Segment
TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC and
A § 206,390 and TITAN LIGHTING CO., § 196,384 TITAN LIGHTING CO., LTD
B 104300 TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC 113.808 TONS LIGHTOLOGY INC and
and TITAN LIGHTING CO,, TITAN LIGHTING CO., LTD
$ 310,690 $ 310,192

(Remainder of page intentionally left bank)

~72~



1 of2q 1 a1q8]

BN puemeA Ul Apted aug o) wolstaoid puw ‘Aundmos jusied poysy o) Areipisqns Aq uorstaoid pue Kreipisqns 0y Auedmoo yuared poyst £q seojmerens siusmasiopus Jo worsiaoad Jo so5e0 350 J0F X, TT T[T 1 910N
ONI ADOTOLHOIT SNO.L 4G UayERopim JoRQuUos ToNonisuos 0Ty 107 Joywerend ol o) sem 1y i 910N
*S10SSE 191 JUALND SI JO 940£ S1e ioq Aued ofFurs e 10 s19m0 o) (LT “ 0D LNIWLSTANI O DONOH A pap1aod soapuerend/suamasiopus wo Jry| Pre Jo Junonre [#)0) 0o FuIe) i¢ 210N
“J9Y UORO3}0I JIUNSHO.) ST FPUD paninbal se 10enuos sajes smoy pjos-aid yop sa)metend asuemioiad a1 Jo ostmesend 10105 (L)
*dpsroumo s3t o) uontodard oy Auedmos psaymiens/PesIopTa ST O SH)NRIENS/SIBWSSIOpUS opiaosd stapjolareqs e @imjua yofl 03 ongi(o)
"JIRNE0D UOHONOSUOS S} Japun parmbai $8 10130002 1urof 10 Amedmod pasjueiendyposiopus o1) Ag openr apes of) Jo sauerensd ferynjn(s)
“Auedwos pasmerend/pasiopus oN) YO Sareys SuToA 946 UBTH AI0W AJJONPU] pue ARoarrp sumo Auedwoo jusred Jojuersnd msiopus sq 1 (¥)
"Anedmoo Jusred Joymerend es10pus 9y JO SOTEYS SUN0A 9406 UETR 2I0W ARSI pue ARoanp sumo Lueduos pasjueiens pasiopus oy, ()
“ATBIPISQNS P32]ERING/PIsIopus ;i3 JO Sareys SUNOA 9405 URY) SI0W ARI0aRpUE pue A[Iomp sumo Aueduwos juared ojmerend/osiopus g 1(7)
“drgsuonejar ssamsng Juaeg(])
10} s3U0]2q 3583 yoea L1089120 J0 IoquUIMu 1} TL 1Y) $$a10TF)e0 uaaes SULMO[[aY A1 OIIT PIISSE]O ST PpasyuRIRNE/pasiopns Sutaq Aued o) Pov I0)URIENE/ISSIOPUS 3G} 0am12q drqsucne[ay] :g 930N
' 1, WOI} SUTER)S J5pI0 UE paIsquuau sk $sUeIpIsqas oy, (7)

0, st Auedwogy sy, (1)
ISAMOTIOJ S1 aTe saLreIpIsqns Yo Amedwmio) o) AQ papiaold sosjueend/SuawasIOpua 9t J0J Ul pa[[y SI2qIUNU ST, 1] ON

“ONI ‘aritod
ADOCTOLHOIT INIWLSHANI Od
- N A N OrL06 § 61l - $ 008's1 $ oo0s'st $ 008'c1 $ oOvL'06 $ (£ SNOL ONOH I
2J0meog (s 210N (s |ON) (s210N) (£ m0N) Aunedmos TeI31e[[00 {# 210N) ( 2100) (¥ 210N) (£ 30N} {Z 210N) oawen Amedwo) Joyuerend (1 210N}
ety Auedoron Arerpisqns pepraoid Joymeiend LM PAmoOs  TMOP TMEIP 6107 610T Kaed orurs Joywerend esiopuyg Iaquinpg
puEpuRy Jrared o) Kwedmos sa9)meIngd HasIopuR ot seojuRIEns  JUMOWIR [ejoY ‘I I9qIsoa(] ‘]gI9queoaq eJoj paplaoxd  sIastopua
mAredaq o) Areiprsqus yuared [SISMIISIOPUS  JO ONJBA JOSSR  /SJUOWIASIOPDS WUnome  JO S o saomerend EL R
o} spajuerend  Aq se2)erend Aq soojrwen3 JOJUNOWE [RI0} 19U 0} JUNOWE  JO jUNOUIY ammeeng sayumrend [SIUAWISIopns  digsuone|sy
JOIIOMWRSIOPUS /SIUSTISSIOPTS [SIUAWASI0pun U0 SU)) sayuerens AUSWSSIOPUA  AUSMWSSIOPTS HouTH] PeaIEIeNS,/ pasIopud
JOUOISIAOI]  JOUOISIAQI]  JO TOISIAQLY AUIMISIOPUS Supuesing  Jwpumsino
3u12q fyreg
PojEINIMIER WOLNXe A
jooney

(peeotput asumramo sv ydsoxy)

——— I =[qe],
610Z 1€ 2qUWa03(] POpUs Teax,

1210 0] Se2)UerenT pUR SUSTISIOPUS JO TOISIAOLY

SHIYVIAISENS ANV "IONI ADOTOLHOIT SNOL



1 99e] g @1qel

“JunowR PajnqLIjucs a1 0} A|yeuoniodoad pejejno(ed s} oNEl Surp[oyareys oY1, Auedwos paw) € sf Py “0D Sunysyy uasIpUY 1 NON
*SIULINGAS SANEALIIP PAL[31 19110 PUE S21E0QIIa0 AIRIoyouaq ‘Spuod SHO0IS 0) JaJal a[qE] Y1 Ul SaUNIDS IqeIaIely ;[ J10N

JUSLIND — $80]
1o030xd yFnony onfea

PIT “00) (WRuIAED) WSS

$S8'EST [Q10], SE8EST oL,
- 3£8's8 e 3£8'¢8 000°160°¢
- £79'6¢ £6'9 £29°6€ 000°Z01'T
- OEL'SH 33 0EL'SE G00°00L T
- CLLTL Al SLLTL 09L°098°¢
TN 695 00°61 695 -

- 10L°1 0061 1041 005'99
- 619° 006l 619°L $ 0061

2101100, onfeA Jeg (84) drysiaumQ onjeA Yooq £31B1S JO J3QINN

610T ‘1€ 19QWa%3(] JO 57

(parentpur astmraio se daoxy)

QLN J© Spumsnoyy ur passazdxg

e e 5)255E [eIITRULY UON Sunylry g1 Suens / digsisume aleys ‘LT 00 INTWLSHANI 09 ONOH
TURLINS — §50]
107g0:d ySnonp anfea Kahi
11EJ I8 S]I5SE [E[OUBLL] JUDN, “00 HOAL JaH / drysioumo areyg ‘ar1 02 LNIWISTANI Od ONOH
JUSLMI-Uon
-aUI0UY SAISUSYAIdOD
13410 YEnomy) anfea Py “00 (mewE) wAsAs
1% 1B S)35SE [BIOURUL] auoN SungBr] a7 Suons / digsoume seys ONI ADOTOLHOI'T SNOL
JUIALN2-T0u
-auIosu] sA1sUsYadmo?
19110 Y3noay; anjea ‘axr1
18} 18 5135k [EIDURLL] SUON - 00 HOAL 4aH / dmysiaumo sreys ‘DNI ADOTOLHOIT SNOL
WBLINI-UGE
-au10o0] SAIsuAgeduod
Iayio ginony) sujea ar1“0d HNLLHOI
18] Ye S)3558 [BIOUBUL] JUoN NASIAANY / drysiaumo a1eyg "ONI ADOTOLHOIT SNOL
JU21IMo-00u
-0 FAISURYIduIoD
12130 YSnonf anfea ‘AL10D
e} Je SJaSSE [BlOUEUL] SUON ONILHOTT NELITID / dIYS1aumo s1eys DINLADOTOLHOIT SNOL
UALINO-TOT
3OS SAISUAYIdwIos
19010 gEnoIy) anfea INI
IIe} I8 519558 [BIOURLE] SUWON VIOUNY NYILL / drysiauso sreqs "ONI ADCTOIHOI'T SNOL
UN030% 139pa] JONSS] SN U0 {1 210N) Aq p[ay sspunoag
jeatlicly) a1 1w diysuong)sy SORLITO3S SlqElaRIRA
(AL LA

610T ‘1€ JoquIaoa(] Papua 12z

(SaIniuaa Jmol pue S3TBIDOSSE SIRIPISGNS Tupnjoul 100} 260K 93 JO PUS 21 1B SALINCSS a[qeiayew 0 Swplof]

SHEVIASINS ANV "ONI ASOTOLHOIT SNOL



1 98%d g 198l

"SIUMHEIS [CIONREY Pa1eposuos o) Sumedaid uatm paeurtii]s 0am STORORSTRN SULL, ip NON

“8pouod Jo Jomdrgs oy oye SABP )g~(¢ ST IR} IPAID A, 9] ASo[oydr] suo] Jo Aonod Juroud Iaysmen) o) 0o paseq SIIANOTIR UONILSIRI], 1€ 310N

P4 poreduros 3q me2 Honoesuen Aed pIrg ou ‘st ‘spsnpoad Sures a1 Jo (591es) saseqaind ou 1. 1L 17 210N

"SOLIBIPISqNS JO $Pean Tejides o1 01 Burpioooe Aoy spen: st juamAed pue saseqamd o 1oye shep g9~0¢ ST WS} Jpao oy, “ouy Lo[opy3r suo], Jo Aorjed Smowud JaystRn oUy WO posEq SI JUNOWR TONIBSTRI | SN

§pooB Jo seseygomd Juared
20N (001 ) (s06'Lzz ) T AN £ 20N oy shep 09~0£ 001 969°1ZL Soseomld  QEWGMOWES (LT Q0 ONILHOTINVLIL  "AX1“0D ONILHOITSNOL
§pooB o soseqamd Auedumo)) o1
FAON (66 ) or'see £9] T AN 1 FoN xaJe shep 09~0¢ L6 L00°T9L § sesemomg  Jo AReIpisqng ‘@l 0D DNILHOIT SNOL ‘ONI ADOTOLHOIT SNOL
[N (o1qeled) aomz[eg [IEET T 2ond I3} 31paI) {saes) JMouTy (sares) Apediomos Aprediojuno) JO[I98/19SBAIN g
200 dGeAIInI saserornd [ej0) SaserAm ] o HIM
SIEMoR/SN0U 30 oBeyunalag digsuonesyy
e
Jo eBemaarag
(s]qrArd) 2[qRAI929T SIUNOTOR/SSION] SUORJIBSIED TONoBSTRL],
Aued pg o) pasedmos
SUILIS) TIOHALSURI] TI S30UIALYI(]
(paveorpur aspmioo se jdaoxg)
(LN J0 Spuesnom oy passazdxyg £2qeL

6107 ‘1 £ 12quIa0d(] PIpPUD JEI 5,
2100z 30 [E3rden w-pred 3o 9,07 10 TOIIE (] $.LN Surgoear sanred poje[al 0 I0 WO SPOOS JO SI(ES JO SISEYAmJ
SHIFVIAISHNS ANV “DONI ADOTOLHOYT SNOL



1 988 ¥ 21981

*SJUATNSYEYS [IONRIY pajEpIjosuod oy Surredard UaTm PajRTINIY Alam STIONOESURY U], 1T 210N
*)Z0Z o7 ATerugad jo se ssned pajeres WoX PAJO[[0D SA[RATA02] JO JUNOWE ST} SI TONIR[[00 Juanbasqng 11 310N

S06'LTTS ymared

- STS'LOI - - 3 3[qBATIIAT SJUNOTOY sjemnyn awey "GLT 00 DNLLHOIT SNOL ‘GLT 0D ONILHOITNVIIL
011°ELTS

- $ +18'901 $ - - § Tre slqealaoal spmoaoy  Auedmos yuared "ONI ASOTOLHOIT SNOL "L 00 ONLIHOIT SNOL

SjUN0JoE [NRqNop (1 210N) WFAE) GOV N0y QJBI IDAOW, {Z =10N) Aredrunon Arediauno)) 1o0yIpan))
10} 2URMOTTY 2)ep 199YS IouR|Rq SA[QEAISIOT ONPIDAQ) 610T ‘1€ 12qua0aQg a9 P
) o1 03 yuanbasqns e Se Iomereg digsuonelay
P2[[02 TNOUTY
(paTestpmI SS1MII0 S Jdooxy)
(LN JO Spuesnoy) ur passaudxy ¥ 2198L

610 *1£ 2QUIa0a(] POPUS Teax
a10t1 10 [eydeo m-pred 10 9407 J0 woIIW OO $LN Surtors sotped pojeRl WOY SA[GRAI0Y
SHTAVIAISANS ANV "ONI ADCTOLHOIT SNOL



1 8884 § 91q8]

‘tegided wi-pred ot} 3O 9407 1589] I8 10} TUN0OE SYUNOIE UONOBSURL], i SJON

"SJUN0IE 1TWSJES 9MI0oAY 10) Sonuaass Sunerado [210) PLIEpI[osucD 0) poued o1 10] JIMOWE TOLOESURT PAJE[UINIOE

Uo paseq pue SIUM0I0E 19915 JUERG 10} S1I558 [R10) PAEPHOSUOS 0] HONOESTET JO 30ue[Rq] pus-portad U0 paseq payndaos ST “S13ssE 18103 10 sanu2421 Suneado [2)0) PajeRIoOSToD 0} JUNOWR UONOESuEN Jo sfejuaoiad Smpredsy i MNON

“Arerpisqus 0} Amipisqng (g)
‘Aeduros juared o) Lreprsqng (7)
-Areipisqns 0] Aueduros juaze ()

:5911032)e0 231 SaLmoy[of o1 03UT pagisse(o s1 Apedinonos pme Auedmos TOOESTRD Uasm)aq AISTONE[DY 7 910N
T, Woly Bulies 18pI0 UL PAIsqUINI 518 seLIeIpIsqns a1y, (7)

*.0, 51 Auedmos yuared (1)

1SMO[C] Se oxe suonoesuer) Auedwmos-1a701 Jo 10adsal ur AmedmIod TONJBSTIEN 2]} IO U1 PO[[ SI2GUINT Y|, 1| 9)ON

spood Jo
6591 saspgarnd 1o)pe shep 05~0¢ (S06°LZT ) (oiqeded smosoy ) () AL 00 ONLLHOIT NV.LIL ‘aL1" 0D HONILHOIT SNOL I
spoad Jo
£5'99 soseyornd 1aye sfep 09~0¢ (969°17L ) (seseqaung ) () ‘LT 00 ONILHOIT NV.ILL "aLlT “0D ONILHOIT SNOL 1
spood yo
88'61 sosegand Jaye sfep 09~-0¢ (011°6LT ) (#1qeded sjunosoy ) iy ‘LT 0D DNILHOIT SNOL “ONI ADOTOLHDIT SNOL 0
5pood Jo
S00L saserind Jolre s&2p 0o~0¢ (LOO'TOL $ (seseqamg ) )] "al1” 02 ONIIHOIT SNOL “ONI AO0TOLHOIT SNOL ]
(€ 20N) STLIA) NOTIGBSTIRL], (¥ 210N) JMO53E 193pa] [R12U5D) (Z91eN) fediunoen owmen Auedwo)) {1 :100D
SIOSSE [E]03 10 SINUIAST Jonoury digsuone[ay Jaquinpy
Smeiado
J210} PAJRPEOSUCD
3o ofemoorag
TOTJoRSTRI],
(payeatpur astmranio se ydaoxg)
(ILN JO spoesnom ur passardxy $2qelL

610T *1€ 2Qmaoa( papua Jea )
ponrad Sunprodaz o) Sump szonoesnex Aueduros-1o)u WEOYIUSIG

SHIIVIAISANS ANV "ONI ADOTOLHDIT SNOL



1 ofeq § o1q8f

*SJUSTIS)EIS [RRURUY pajeprjosund o1 Supedard ustym pajeunumya 2124 SUCTIOBSUERL S, & § S10N

-51500 souenduIos SUSealat O JNSAT ¢ 52 ‘ZNag T palaisySar sea Yoma ‘pIT 0D FunySr] suo] ‘Arerprsqns paumo-Afoym yoa11pul 8 AUEdUIoD) alj1 SAJOSEIP O] PaAosal Kuedizopy a1} Jo sI030IK JO pIEOY A ‘60T 9T AN WO b 910N

-potpons A1tnba Sursn Jof pajunooge suLUSHAULRI s, fredimo)) ST 216 SAAFSOAUT 21T, 1€ AN
~PasO[OSTP 30U $T (§50]) SUDANT JUSIIISIANY “SILIEIPISGNS [ANS JO H9JS2AUT PUR SeLIZIPISQNS 130-pu0dss s, Aredwiod oy oFe $99158AUT 9T iZ 910N
‘SuORaIESURn weansdn 1surede 13510 0) PAST {SSO[) SUIOSUT JUIULSIAUL SWpnou] 1] 210N

(s ‘Ta0p)
Leipisqns Awedwos Spue|s] lacihiZig] “ONI
1aR1ipuy - 815°pL 65Y'LYL 001 999'LT L16°008 L16%00% jususeAlly  WBHA ysnug XDOTONHOHAL dHdNSLVAD  ONIQIOH ONFIXd GTIOM
{5 ‘za0N) _
Aeipsqne Auedwos QaLVIOdH0ONT "ONI
wanpyy - s ) 65£%8 001 000°0SZ°E 065'001 068°001 JIURSAUTY EOUIES DNIGTOH SNONDANT  ONITTIOH ANALXH ATIOM
(s ¥ ‘TN 3110559008 PUR
Kepisqns sianpoxd Suyydy ONF
y2au1puy - ' £61°11 8617 00t 000°008 £791 SZ9°1 SnaLreA Jo saes azijag ‘ULT 00 ONILHOITSNOL  ONIGTOH ANHLXH ITd0M
oy -
EoeN (gzr'el ) (gs9°ie } LL8%9s LS'8p 000°00L°T - 000°0L Jo apesa[oyM pouies ALIATT ONIAVRL OF 1AV ONI ADOTOLIOIT SNOL
(5 =100) Aueduroa arT
Ampsang  {€26'57 ) {gz6'sz ) 6T9%Z1 001 000°000°¢1 000°sZ1 000521 TUIULSAUY LA “00 LNAWLSTANI OF DNOH ORI ADOTOIHOIT SNOL
{5 1 2N Aneduod NI
Areipisqng 0188 $ 5158 $ oesTLE 001 Ov'ELe’s! TLESKS  § TLESHS § sunssamay eouey ONIQTCH ANALXH ATI0M ‘DNI ADOTOLHOIT SNOL
2)0u400 6102 1€ 610T°1€ anjeayoog (%) dnjseumQ  SOIEYS JO QN 810z 610T sapianoe uonexoT 3915941 1o}saau]
130Ma3s(] PAPUS  IQUUXNHT PIpU ‘1 laqudd(]  “1f I9quIans(]  SSIUTSTL UIERY
1eak arpy 10} 1eak Yy 10J B SES0UB[Rg  1v S ddue[eg
Auedwo) S91S9ALL 3] JO
o1 Aq pesiuTooar  (s500) 1pond BN
(ssop) G10T ‘1€ JAqIiiaaa(] 1€ 5¢ ploy So1eys TUTNOUrE JUSUHSAAU] [BnI]
SWOIUL JISUNSIAU]
(pareorpur asmaIayo se 1dasyy)
(1IN JO Spuesnot u1 passaidiey 93qeL

6107 ‘1€ 2qWsdx] P3PU 13X

$39)50AUT U0 LOJJEULIOJUT

SHIIVIAISEANS ANV "ONI ADOTOLHOIT SNOL



1 aBeg 1 91qe],

(QELINTT ONIAVYLL OS 1AV 98nar persaamad 017 00 TINLINGNT OS1 9V ONUITE pue pawnry Jutpes], Suoyz o5 vy 1eydueys ‘a.L0ATT ONIAVYL ONOHZ OF 1HV
{'pi1 “o (mewmte)) mwaisdg TongdrT 03 1F008S GINCIAT PASIATIAN 'Pi] "0 (WOUZ 11§} Yoo L 01dg nokary) puesn pue *pi o)) smalskg Sunydr] a3 nedueD puern feHImRyg
+“a0] SMPIOH PUAIXY Pirom, [EN0NN paseAmRs PrT o) SIRYAr] suo] mgsInonz put 'pi1 o5 Jungdry uelly) ‘BUT[Y) PUB[TIBEY OI 231SSATT S I PIISIAI TSI GAL# ‘Bate pag o U Auedmes Supsixe ae ur Sunsaam y¥nomy, {7)
Ry pURORpY U1 Aueduros 2 at 3saam A (1)
:sapzoBares 220 Su1moie] g1 0101 PATJISSE|d 218 SPOYI9 I JTIINSIAT] (] 210K

ALT"0D HENLININA

F1aN - - - Ls'8y - 0gL'Ll - 0EL'L1 - 4] (13374 sanLIy fo apRIL OSIdY DNITAE
payury Sapesy Fuoyz
12N - - - LS8Y - - - - - ) 33974 QILIIWITY 3O IPRIL, 0§ ¥y mrdmeqg

QLA DNIdVEL

g1I0N - - - L83 - 3079 - 9029 - @ I66'€1 SIMLNIY 3O pRL], ONOHZ 05 L4V
s1onpoad Rquo poe
wogeoTdde J012npooTmas

{17 J0 s9es pue uononposd ‘P17 “o) {nogz

LT3N 015 - - {3:44] - S6TEr - - 66T'EY @ L8F'0SE uIdoRAZp ‘qoIRASIY ng) wokue) puein
spnposd pyo pug

ueneadde 1o1ampuoanmss PrT <0 swnsks

Qg7730 so[es pue nonanperd  3ungdry gg7 wokoz)

FANE 1) G - - SETI . 106 - - 106 [ra] 95E'EE “momdo[aacp ‘goseasay purI) RHIMERLS
SILIDESHOL
pue sdurey yo Smpen

pue wopanposd pue “spred a1

95Tl SIEMPIEY 10 STIRPEINIED (0D AD0TOLHOIT

aoN - L16'V8 (sgs ) o000t (334 ) The'Ty - - T @} 9€6'$6 ‘sionpord o uFRA  SNOLIVHONVHS
SaltossIIe
pue sdwe) jo Smpen
poe uononpord pue *sued

ST axempiey Jo Sutmiognuenl g1 00 ONILHOIT

AN - T19'T01 9791 Q0001 79791 £85°011 - - S26°011 @ 876'LOY ‘nenpoid Jo WBISII  SNOL NVHSONOHZ
SILINSSID0R

pus sdme jo Smpen
pue ucyonpord pue ‘sped

STETT SFRMPIRY 30 FoLInIdgnIRT ‘aritoon
JAON 99899 § p9gol § 8T9Ls $ orool 8T9LS  §  SpE'soE 3 - § - $ she'aoc $ 4 0EE'L9€E $ ‘sonpordjo wHis30 ONLLHOFTNVALL
[omao] 610T [ITATS 610Z 1€ (ionpur 6102 GHOZ 1L uemie] o BUIGD 6102 potam Te1ictes ur-pred santalae BUI) PR
1€ 1Y a 1! (] je e y (1PSpUR  I0DANP) [ ROWIONT  JAQERSI(] JO SB Aorq PUE[EEIN ‘[ ATRNUE[JOSE  JURAWSIAUY SS2U1STI] UTRAL 1 2215aAT]
JOSEWRAIR]  ROWD PURURIY  JRA A 10§ Awedwey  joseeasA  RMOD PWRMIRW  PANNISY  O)PINIWSN  UGIYD POM[ERR
01028Q PANTSI W sImaONsIANl  Awedwo] e dq ap JOIWOIM 1M O} UemIE], o FI0T 1€ pqmessg papte. OV TEMEL
AMOIVL Joan[ea Joog pastndonal Ag Py IDUBHIWI JO reak 9 10] UEMIEL O3 oY 3)URIITEI
JUIWSIATIL JO (ssop)smoom  digsisumgy JunOme youq pammaL _nm_oE< O junoure
Jumorre TUIUNSIAUY POR[IumIcY 355.05_52 POIR[IWNINY
palepumaay .2 s a,—..
WO PALIDSE Junoury
{pateap1n astavomo se 1dsoxg)
(1IN $0 spuesnom uy passaidxg £ 19EL

610T ‘1€ 9413 papua Iy
BUI) PUS[UE U1 SI0UOSIAUT 00 TOfRaLio)u]

SHEVIGISANS ANV "ONI ADOTOLIHDIT SNOL



g 9%eg L Qe

“SIRITV SRHOU00F JO ANISTUIpY 2t £q pasodu STV PiE[UTE 91 Uf ToRRIsdo0) TeonIas ], pLe Jusunsaau] A1omosg BunLisAcs) sUORELEay,, W Paumads (19552 12030 9508) WL 3 U0 poseq Palefofes Fam suannsaan uo fumis) ¢ aioN
6102 ‘1€ equaseq wo 3ym1 10ds Jurjfas pue 3umkng

BRIGAR O JR PRIUSURR UG3q $UY pUY Y30E PAY: L W PAR30] “ou] SUIPIOH PUSIGT PHOAM DIISRAUL 3T J0 PUESNO ()3’ 1S (TSN 30 SPIRY Nmo Smpnjawm) puesnag) 00Z'yh$ (LN POB PIESIOM §3L°075 GSI1 Sem junome pasniddy 17 31N
"3ORENIWAI PIEAING 1R 212X 93TRYIX [ENITR ST I8 PAIE[NO[ED SLAL YITIM (IS() JO SIINOTTR 152D T} 125001 WU0J-H0qs ¢ pRisnpeod sey 1eip Amedmoo soisaaut Te “prT

“07) JuSunSSADY 0ff BU0R 01 dySIONM0 UBES I 10} PULSHOY 501§ ASN TMPRIM ‘puesnOm 00T FrS (LLN PUE PURSROW £64°91% (157 SBM 10T ‘1€ 19qUIR0A(Y JO S¢ BUYD) PURIUIE/ 0} WAL, WO SIUEN{UII0 WNOMR PAIE[NUMadY ;| SI0N

NI
60£'589 § 1RFLYY $ 80’068 % ADOTOLEOIT SNOL
[N (Z 5100 [ETN] SUIED AUCAmIo,)

VEOW IO (vEOK) 6107 '1£ RquIsasg
UOLSSIIOY)  SIEY JMEOmOYY O SE BHI) Prejuiep
JOMSSAT]  JOANSIITA ST 0) TRMET, WOG 90WNms
ET) JOTOISSIIEA]) O |GNOWE PIR[AWBSI Y

Aqpasodwn  JmmSaAN] 3t Aq

BN paaocxdde junowmre
PuUE[uTE 1UIOGEIATL
SIUSEISAATI
e 3[R

TU) PUR[UTER UISISIATT Y1 207 A[eNPIATPOI ONEA J00g SIE 18 JUANRSIATL

S pue(ss0]) 2Woom JEIUGsoAT ISTUBC01 108 Pip Auedwog 3t ‘61053190 1, ‘(LA DNIAVEL OS LYV G8n0Ip paiseatmas (1700 EMILLINAI OSLAY DNIIAF pue panarr] Smpery, Snoyz og iy eydueys ‘QELIATT ONITVEL DNOHZ 08 LAV 8 310N
“BUI) PURTIRIA O1 S901S3ATI 34} J0J K|[ENPIATPUL S0JEA 300q SIi 8 JUITMSIATY 2T) PUE (SS07) SWOdT JISUnSaAL] astudoo1 100 pip Awedmop) ot ‘atoja1any,

“[U22INS- 0T - SI9SST [RIVURI S[ES-10]-3F|EAR SE PIPIOOAI SEA JHATISOAT 2L Pr] “03 (Temke)) welsks Suaydyy garisuons yinam pasasmal pr1 o0 (noUZ 15) paL, e BoAneD) prean pus piT oD swasds SupyEry qF'] uoAu) prarD MHIWRNS 1L 210N
“puBsTOT (0% ] QIS 1S9ATII 0} CLLYHOTIOINL DNIGIOH SIONTAYT Pre DNI DNIGTOH ANELXHE G TIOM YSNOI Memse 1, WX SaIUBNimasam

pu ‘puzsnogy 0081 QIS J0 QALVIOSIOINI DNKTTOH SNONDANT 95100 ‘ONT ONITTOH ANRLLXE ATHOM;, *Ked pirgl 91 10 1u3tm1s3AT]o5 4q posodmes sea goigm ‘Eides m-pred puesnoy) 0T'E ASN F91°ALT “0D ADOTOIHOIT SNOL [VHONVHS /9 310N
“JURLIGSIAT [REIOT O JE 9je1 auendxs

21 Y& paje{SUEn) St 'K[PARoedsal * PIRSHOT (0p* I IS/ P PUESNOM ¢ £5°E$ (ISM° PYRSNOn 918" 11§ SN0 QLT “0D ADOTOLHOTT SNOL IVHONVHS Pue "pr “e) Suny3rj suo), weqsinoqz “pry “eD Supy8yy UsiL Ul INOLIE JEIARSIAN] PAIE[Imady i 30N,
6102 "1 £ requadsgy uo et jods Jumpas

pue Smdng Bzt 1) |6 pale{suEsy Sem A2ATORd801 | PIRSTOT) 00Z'ES (IS PUR PUESION 09°ES (ISTL ‘PUESIOG £57°21$ CISMI0 ‘ALT "0 ADOTOLHOIT SNOLIVHONYHS Put Py] 0D SUB3rT suo weqsduan “pry o) Saugdry ue], jo eades uy-pred :p 10N

1980 TIOJ-0GS ¥ PAA0PTOS SBY J6Y) A02dIm0d SHSIATY UE “Pr] “0) IUMNSaAL] o SOOH M dIGSISUMo 21eys ST} 10) PUESHOT Cp6'pES STPN[Int ‘10T ‘1 Aenue( J0 S¢ 2aIy) PUEUfel 01 VRMIR], WOL SIUERIUIL JO JONGIIE PAR[NIINIY +¢ ION

a0 s Auedwoo uared 'O £q PsH1YE PUE PoMol ]S [ 1y ue paseq ST G107 *TE 19qUIDaa(] PIpUS Feak o1} 107 Auedmo;) i Aq pesTUE0o0] (5507) SUICOUT UBUNSIAN] 17 0N
sy (§)




